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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Commissioners’ Court
Jackson County, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jackson County,
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Jackson County, Texas’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jackson County, Texas as of September 30,
2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 18,
2013, on our consideration of Jackson County, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other maftters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on interal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, and the schedule of funding progress for the Public
Employees Retirement System, and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 11, 51,
and 69 through 91, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Jackson County, Texas' financial statements as a whole. The combining and
individual non-major fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and
individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including companng and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,

BEYER & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants

Pleasanton, Texas
April 18, 2013



Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of Jackson County, Texas, we offer readers of Jackson County, Texas’ financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Jackson County,
Texas for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.

Financial Highlights

The assets of Jackson County, Texas exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $16,333,130 (net assets). Of this amount, $7,796,908 (unrestricted net
assets) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

The government's total net assets decreased by $336,924. This increase is attributable to
an increase in capital grants and sales taxes of $449,300 and $371,408, respectively,
being offset by a dedication of assets to the Jackson County Water Control District No.
2.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, Jackson County, Texas’ govemmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $8,207,422, an increase of $509,978 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 85% of this total amount, $7,013,351 is
available for spending at the govemment's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$7,013,351, or 112 percent of total general fund expenditures, the fund balance for the
road and bridge fund was $372,845, or 18 percent of total road and bridge fund
expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Jackson County, Texas’
basic financial statements. Jackson County, Texas’ basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of Jackson County, Texas’ finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Jackson County, Texas’ assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
Jackson County, Texas is improving or deteriorating.



The staternent of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Jackson County, Texas that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The govemnmental activities of Jackson County, Texas
include general administration, public safety, environmental protection, public transportation,
health and welfare, public facilities, legal, elections, financial administration, conservation,
capital projects, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of Jackson County,
Texas include an airport fund, and a commissary fund.

The govemment-wide financial statements include only Jackson County, Texas itself (known as
the primary govermment).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Jackson
County, Texas, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds:

Govermnmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Jackson County, Texas maintains twenty nine (29) individual governmental funds. [nformation is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the road
and bridge funds, the district Clerk reserve fund, and the Community Development Grant fund,
all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other twenty four (24) governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.



Jackson County, Texas adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund, road and bridge fund, and all the
other special revenue funds for which budgets were adopted.

The basic governmental fund financial staterments can be found on pages 14-20 of this report.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-24 of this report.

Jackson County, Texas also has four agency funds and oue trust fund presented in this report.
Such funds are not included in the county wide statement but are shown separately on pages 25-
26.

Notes to the financial statements:

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 27-50 of this report.

Other information.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning Jackson County, Texas’ progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 51 and 52 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the general fund, the major road
and bridge funds, the non-major governmental funds, and the non-major proprietary funds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 52-68 of this
report. The budget comparison schedules in connection with the non-major governmental funds
can be found on pages 69-91 of this report.



Govemnment-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. [n the case of Jackson County, Texas, assets exceeded liabilities by $16,333,130 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year.

A large portion of Jackson County, Texas’ net assets (46 percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, infrastructure, and equipment); less any related
debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. Jackson County, Texas uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although Jackson County, Texas’ investment in its capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

NET ASSETS
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2012 20114 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current and Other Assels $9,848,126  $9,073,841 $65016  $27126  $3,913142  $9,100,937
Capital Assets 7,021,831 7,869,657 558,677 573,765 7,580,508 8,443422
Total Assels 16,869,957 16,943,468 623,693 600,891 17493,650 17,544,359
Long-Term Liabilities 513,893 555,375 0 0 513,893 555,375
QOther Liabilities 636,397 310,601 10,230 8,329 646,627 318,930
Total Liabilities 1,150,290 865,976 10,230 8,328 1,160,520 874,305
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 6,958,374 7,776,805 558,677 573,765 7,517,051 8,350,370
Restricted 1,019,171 951,824 0 0 1,019,171 951,824
Unrestricted 7,742,122 7,349,063 54,786 18,797 7,796,908 7,367,860
Tolal Net Assets $15,719,667 §16,077,492 $613,463 §592562 $16,333,130 $16,670,054

An additional portion of Jackson County, Texas’ net assets (6 percent) represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets ($7,796,908) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current fiscal year, Jackson County, Texas reported a
positive balance in the governmental activities. For the prior fiscal year, Jackson County, Texas
reported positive balances in net assets, both for the government as 2 whole, as well as for its
separate governmental activities. At the end of the current fiscal year, Jackson County, Texas
reported a positive balance in the governmental activities. For the prior fiscal year, Jackson
County, Texas reported positive balances in all three categories of net assets for its governmental
activities.

The government's total net assets decreased by $336,924. This decrease is attributable to an
increase in capital grants and sales taxes of $449,300 and $371,408, respectively, being offset by
a dedication of assets to the Jackson County Water Control District No. 2.



There was an increase of $67,347 in restricted net assets reported in connection with Jackson
County, Texas’ govemment-type activities. This increase resulted from monies being set aside
for future projects and functions of the County.

Governmental activities:

Governmental activities decreased Jackson County, Texas’ net assets by $357,825, thereby
accounting for 00 percent of the total growth in the net assets of Jackson County, Texas. The
discussion above regarding the governments 2011-2012 activities is valid for the governmental
activities because the activity for the business-type activities is immaterjal.

JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Governmenial Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $1,779,070  $1,942613  $22,271  $49,662 $1,801,241  §1,992,275
Operaling Granis and Coniributions 681,306 746,203 0 0 681,806 746,203
Capital Grants and Confributions 1,240,857 748,038 33,334 76,853 1,274,191 824,801
General Revenues
Mainienance and Operations Taxes 5,478,821 5,404 641 5,478,821 5,404,641
Salss Tax 1,110,996 738,588 1,110,996 739,588
Other Taxes 49,490 20,428 49,490 20,428
Unrestricted Investment Eamings 93,124 87,818 307 58 03,431 87,876
Miscslianeous 224,724 266,598 224,724 266,598
Total Revenue 10,658,888 9,955,927 55912 126,573 10,714,800 10,082,500
Expenses:
General Administration 1,128,318 1,144,871 0 0 1,128,318 1,144,871
Judicial 1,028,206 915,575 1,028,206 915,575
Legal 21,324 23,559 21,324 23,558
Financial Administration 674,208 661,919 674,208 661,919
Public Facilities 2,476,203 515,890 2,476,203 515,890
Public Safety 2,834,472 2,821,758 8,980 8,589 2,843,452 2,830,347
Public Transportation 2,212,895 1,966,579 2,242,895 1,966,579
Environmental Protections 251,711 248,994 251,711 248,994
Cuiture and Recreation 199,612 180,944 60,758 91,463 260,370 272,407
Health and Weifare 78,383 239,479 78,383 239,479
Conservation - Agriculfure 72,249 83,039 72,249 83,039
Interest and Fiscal Charges 4,405 5,742 4,405 5,742
Tots! Expenses 10,981,986 8,808,348 69,738 100,052 11,051,724 8,908,401
Increase in Net Assets Before (323,008) 1,147,578  {13,826) 26,521 (336,924) 1,174,099
Transfers and Special ltems
Transfers (34,727) 34,727 0 0
Increase in Net Assels (357,825) 1,147,578 20,901 26,521 (336,924) 1,174,039
Net Assels at 9/30/2011 16,077,492 14929914 592562 566,041 16,670,054 15495955
Net Assets at 9/30/2012 $15,719,667 $16,077,492 $613,463 $502,562 $16,333,130 $16,670,054




Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for  Granlsand  Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services  Confributions  Confributions
Primary Government
Goverament Activities:
General Administration $1,128,318 $357.436 $40,016 $0
Judicial 1,028,206 411,924 10,392
Legal 21,324 8,050
Financial Administration 674,208 194,434
Public Faciliies 2,476,203 1,240,857
Public Safety 2,834,472 99,804 292,576
Public Transportation 2,212,895 552,370 21,204
Environmental Protections 251,711 148,104 2,280
Culture and Recreation 199,612 3,824 304,823
Health and Welfare 78,383 2,124 10,515
Conservation - Agriculture 72,249
Interest and Fiscal Charges 4,405
Total Government Activilies $10,981,986 $1,779,070 $681,806  $1,240,857

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

REVENUES %
Charges for Services $4,779,070 16.69%
Operating Grants and Contributions 681,806 6.40%
Capita) Granls and Conlributions 1,240,857 11.64%
Maintenance and Operations Taxes 5,478,821 51.40%
Sales Tax 1,110,996 10.42%
Other Taxes 49,490 0.46%
Unrestricted Investment Eamings 93,124 0.87%
Miscellaneous 224,724 2.11%

$10,658,888 100.00%




Business-Type Activilies:

Business-type activities (commissary and airport fund) in Jackson County represented 100
percent of the total growth in the net assets of Jackson County, Texas. A discussion regarding
these is below.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business Activities
Praogram Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grantsand  Granls and

Funclions/Programs Expenses Services  Contributions  Contributions
Primary Government

Business-Type Activities:

Jail Commissary $8.980 $10,897 $0 $0
Airport 60,758 11,374 33,334
Total Business-Type Activities: $69,738 $22,271 $0 $33,334

Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities
REVENUES %
Unvrestricted Investment Eamings $307 100.00%
§$307 100.00%

Business-type activities:
Business-type activities increased the County’s net assets by $20,901.

. Demand for services for business-type activities decreased by $27,391.
Transfers in increased by $34,727.
Total grant proceeds decreased by $43,519.
Total expenses decreased by $30,314.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, Jackson County, Texas uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds.

The focus of Jackson County, Texas’ governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
Jackson County, Texas’ financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.



As of the end of the current fiscal year, Jackson County, Texas’ governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of §8,207,422, an increase of $509,978 in comparison with the
prior year. Approximately 85 percent of this total amount ($7,013,351) constitutes unassigned
fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Jackson County, Texas. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $7,013,351, while total fund balance
reached $7,355,631. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund
balance represents 112 percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 118 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of Jackson County, Texas’ general fund increased by $542,852 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this increase are as follows: This increase is attributable to an
increase in capital grants and sales taxes of $449,300 and $371,408, respectively.

The road and bridge fund had a fund balance of $372,845. As a measure of the road and bridge
fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance
to total fund expenditures. Total fund balance represents 18 percent of that same amount. The
fund balance of the road and bridge fund increased by $24,283 during the current year. Key
factors in this increase are as follows: Decrease in transportation expenditures.

The district clerk reserve fund had no fund balance. It is not useful to compare both unassigned
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures because there were no
expenditures in the 201 1-2012 year. The district clerk reserve fund had only assets and liabilities.

The community development grant fund had no fund balance. It is not useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures because this fund is a
grant fund thus it is set up merely to administer grants.

Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for the general fund were
an increase of $103,628. This increase was applied ratably except for the sheriff department
which increased by $35,139. The difference between the original budget and the final amended
budget for the road and bridge fund was an increase of $12,300. This increase is immaterial. The
total general fund expenditures of $6,211,075 were less than the budgeted expenditures of
$7,367,680 by $1,156,605. The total road and bridge expenditures of $1,942,741 were less than
the budgeted expenditures of $2,364,499 by $421,758.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets:

Jackson County, Texas’ investment in capital assets for its governmental activities and business-
type activities as of September 30, 2012, amounts to $7,580,408 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system
improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and infrastructure items such as roads,
highways, and bridges. The total decrease in Jackson County, Texas’ investment in capital assets
for the current fiscal year was 10.22 percent (10.77 percent decrease for governmental activities
and 2.65 percent decrease for business-type activities). The County had a disaster mitigation
project during the year ended September 30, 2012.

JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Business-type Tolal
Activilies Activities
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Land $429,877  §429.877 $70254 $70,254  $500,131  $500,131
Construction in Progress 269,660 774,268 117,581 87,546 387,241 861,814
Building and Improvements 2,434,718 2,667,731 132816 147,532 2,567,534 2,705,263
Machinery and Equipment 2,052,802 2,165,968 61,698 60,163 2,114,500 2,226,132
Infrastructure 1,834,774 1,941,812 176,228 208270 2,011,002 2,150,082
Total $7,021,831 $7,869,657 $558,577 §573,765 97,580,408 $8,443,422

Additional information on Jackson County, Texas” capital assets can be found in note [V C on
page 40 and 41 of this report.

Long-term debt:

At the end of the current fiscal year, Jackson County, Texas had no bonded debt.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the County's finances and to show the County's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need

additional financial information, contact the County’s business office, at Jackson County, Texas,
115 W. Main, Room 209B, Edna, Texas 77957.

11



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Prepaid Expenses
Capital assefs not being depraciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital assets being depreciated, net
Buikding and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Due to Othess
Accrued Wages Payables
Daferred Revenues
Noncufrent Liabiliies:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested In Capital Assels, Net of Related Debt
Restricted
General Administration
Culture and Recreation
Judicial
Legal
Permanent kmprovesent
Public Safety
Public Transportation
Unrestricted
Total Net Assels

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Govemment
Govemmental Business-typs
Actlivities Activiies Jolal
$8.435,242 $50,781  $8.486,023
1,343,045 12,734 1,355,779
69,839 1,501 71,340
420,877 70,254 500,131
269,660 117,581 387,241
2,434,718 132916 2,567,634
2,052,802 64,698 2,114,500
1,834,774 176,228 2,011,002
$16,869,957 $623,693  $17,493,650
$346,545 $10,230 $356,775
130,237 130,237
158,790 158,790
825 825
151,708 151,705
362,188 362,188
1,150,290 10,230 1,160,520
6,958,374 558,677 7.517,054
89,437 89,437
8,398 9,398
86,522 86,522
17,535 17,535
285,341 285,341
169,945 169,945
360,993 360,993
7,742,122 54,786 7,796,908
$15,719,667 $613,463  $16,333,130
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDEO SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Net (Expense)
Revenue and Net (Expense)
Changes in Revenue and
Prograim Revenues Net Assels Changes in
Operaling Capital Nat Assets
Chargesfor Graptsand  Granisand Govemmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Seivices  Confribulions  Contributions  Activities Activities Total
Primary govemment
Govemment Activities:
General Administration $1,128,318 $357,436 $40,016 $0 ($730,866) {$730,868)
Judidal 1,028,206 411,924 10,362 (605,890) {605,890)
Legal 21,324 8,050 (13,274) (13,274)
Financial Administration 674,208 194,434 (479,774) (479,774)
Public Facilities 2,476,203 1,240,857  (1,235,348) {1,235,346)
Public Safety 2,834,472 99,804 292,576 {2,442,092) (2,442,092)
Public Transportation 2,212,895 552,370 21,204 (1,639,321) (1,639,321)
Environmental Protection 251,711 149,104 2,280 {100,327) (100,327)
Culture angd Recreation 198,612 3,824 304,823 108,035 109,035
Health and Wetfare 78,383 2124 10,515 (65,744) (65,744)
Conservation - Agriculiure 72,249 (72,249) (72,249)
Interest ang Fiscal Charges 4,406 {4,405) {4,405)
Total Government Activities 10,981,986 1,778,070 681,806 1,240,857  (7,280,253) 0 (7,280,253
Business-Type Activities:
Jail Commissary 8,980 10,897 1,917 1817
Airport 60,758 1,374 33,334 (16,050) (16,050)
Tolal Business-Type Aclivities: 60,738 22,211 0 33,334 ] (14,133) (14,133)
Total Primary Government $11,051,724  $1,801,341 $681,806  $1,274.191  (7.280,253) (14,133)  (7,294,386)
General Revenues
Property Taxes, Levies for General Purposes 5,478,821 5,478,821
Sales Taxes 1,410,996 1,110,996
Other Taxes 49,490 49,490
Unrestricted Investment Eamings 93124 307 93,434
Miscellaneous 224,724 224,724
Transfers (34,727) 34,727 0
Tolal General Revenues 6,922,428 35,034 6,957,462
Change in Net Assets (357,825) 20,901 (336,924)
Net Assets - Beginning 16,077,492 592562 16,670,054
Net Assats - Ending $15,718,667 $613,463  §16,333,130

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Road District Community Other Total
General and Clesk Development Governmental Govemmental
Fond Bridge Resesrve Grant Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $7,334,928 $408,903 $123.824 $0 $487,587  $8,435,242
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectivles) 583,183 2,859 111,530 49,806 757,478
Prepald Insurance 56,939 11,852 1,048 69,839
Total Assels $7,865,050 $503,714 $123,824 $111,530 $538,441 $9,262,559
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabitities
Accounis Payable $82,099 $103,509 $111,530 $49,007 $346,545
Due to Others 123,624 6,413 130,237
Accrued Wages Payable 127,755 26,960 4,075 158,790
Defered Revenues 419,565 419,565
Totat Liabilities 628,419 130,869 123,824 111,530 ~ 59,495 1,055,137
Fund Balances:
Non-Spendable
Prepaid Hiems 56,939 11,852 1,048 69,839
Restricted
General Administration 89,437 89,437
Cutlure and Recreation 9,398 9,388
Judicial 86,522 86,522
Legat 17535 17,535
Permanent Improvement 285,341 285,341
Public Safety 169,945 169,945
Public Transportation 350,893 360,993
Committed
Cufture and Recreation 52,568 52,568
Heatth and Welfare 12,006 12,006
Public Safety ' 40,487 40,487
Unassigned 7,013,351 7,013,351
Total Fund Balance 7,355,631 372,845 0 4] 478,946 8,207,422
Total Liabities and Fund Batances $7,985 050 $503,714 $123,824 $111,530 $538,441 $9,262,559

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Total Fund Balances - govemmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for govemmental activitiss in the statement of net assats
(*SNA") are different because:

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not reported in the funds.
Oiher long-tenm assels are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Propeity taxes receivable unavailable to pay for curent period
expenditures are deferred in the funds (net of allowance for uncollectiles).
Long-term liatilities, incdluding compensated absences, are not due and payable in the
current pesiod and therefore are not repoited in the funds.

Nel assets of govemmental activities - statement of net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2012

Road District Community Other Tolal
General and Clerk Development Govemmental Govemmental
Fund Bridge Reserve Grant Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes
Property $6,469,466 $5,469,466
Sales 1,110,996 1,110,996
Other 49,490 49,490
Inlergovernmental 281,853 21,204 1,240,857 397,976 1,951,990
Licenses and Permits 552,370 552,370
Charges for Sesvices 621,350 147,610 768,960
fFines and Forfeilures 499,227 499,227
Interest 83,278 7,793 2,055 93,124
Misceflaneous 90,587 75,119 59,018 224,724
Tolal Revenues 8,216,345 §56,486 0 1,240,857 606,659 10,720,347
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Administration 1,081,694 94,668 1,186,362
Judicial 871,515 31,395 1,002,910
Legat 29,437 29,437
Financial Administration 658,826 656,826
Public Facilities 420474 420,474
Public Safety 2,544,088 252,425 2,796,513
Public Transportation 1,991,381 1,991,381
Enviromental Protection 237,190 237,190
Cuiture and Recreation 181,324 272,995 464,316
Health and Weifare 56,000 24,002 80,002
Conseivation - Agriculture 71,347 71,347
Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay 1,202,884 1,202,884
Debl Sesvice
Principal Retirement 29,595 29,585
Interest Retirement 4,405 4,405
Total Expenditures 6,242,455 2,025,381 0 1,202,884 704,922 10,175,642
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 1,973,890  (1,368,895) 0 37,973 (98,263) 544,705
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Qperating Transfers In 2,479,698 1,950,699 17,150 4,447,747
Opesaling Transfers Oul (3,910,736) (557,721) (14,017)  (4,482,474)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {(1431,038) 1,393,178 0 0 3,133 (34,727)
Net Changes in Fund Balances 542,852 24,203 0 37,973 (95,130) 508,978
Funa Balances - Beginning 6,812,773 348,562 0 (37,973) 574,076 7,697,444
Fund Balances - Ending $7,355,631 $372,845 §0 $0 $478,946  $8,207,422

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS YO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Net Changes in Fund Balances - total govemmental funds

Amounts reported for govermmental activitiss i the statement of net assets
(‘SNA") are different because:

Govemnmental funds repont capital outlays as expenditures. Howevey, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their astimated usefid lives
and reported as depraciation expense. This is the amount by which capitat outlays
axceeded deprediation in the current period.

Other long-tenn assets are not available fo pay for cument peried

expenditures and, therefore, are defered in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year,

(Increase) decrease in Compensated absences fram beginning of period to end of period,

Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year.
Increase in debt due to the impiementation of GASB 45 - Other Post Employment Senefits.
Repayment of loan grincipal is an expenditure in the funds but not an expensa in the SOA.

Change in net assets of govemmental activities - statement of activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$509,978

(847,826)
(70,814)
11,887
9,355

0
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance wilh
Finat Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property $5460,368  $5460,368  $5,478,379 $18,010
Sales 555,000 555,000 1,044,201 489,201
Otlher 24,780 25,740 45,989 20,249
Intergovemmental 590,183 686,523 383,944 (302,578)
Charges for Services 507,200 507,200 616,249 109,049
Fines and Forleitures 466,500 466,500 489,277 »7z7
Interest 63,825 63,825 83,321 18,496
Miscellaneous 34,560 37,960 92,044 54,884
Total Revenues 7,702,417 7,803,117 8,244,154 444,037
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Administration
Commissiones’s Count 282,547 282,547 280,826 1,724
County Clerk 327,184 327,194 286,538 40,656
County Judge 145,282 145,282 144,244 1,038
Elections 14,583 15,512 15,398 114
Non-Departmental 513,114 444 674 351,699 92975
Judiciat
Coun Expense 149,653 149,653 125,084 24,569
Crminal District Attorney 352,940 361,672 345,883 15,789
District Clerk 185,006 185,006 174,508 10,498
District Court 57,132 89,132 64,429 4,703
Jury 25,625 25,625 21,968 3,857
Justice of the Peace No. 1 141,971 144,971 139,089 2,882
Justice of the Peace No. 2 137,196 137,19 127,267 9,929
Financial Administration
County Augitor 228,595 228,595 227,664 931
County Treasurer 128,125 128,125 123,963 4,162
Tax Assessor-Collector 322,235 323,520 259,908 23,812
Public Facilities
Public Facilities 686,202 717,858 416,514 301,344
(continued)
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(continued)

Public Safety
Adult Probation 3,100 3,100 2,269 831
Ambulance 40,000 40,000 40,000 0
Civil Defense 64,768 86,700 86,229 471
Constlable No. 1 65,975 66,375 65,037 1,338
Conslable No. 2 65,428 65,429 83,126 2,303
Correctlions 1,026,411 1,028,940 1,004,579 24,361
D.P.S.ALicense and Weight 37,085 37,085 1,311 35,774
D.P.S./Troopers 4,355 4,355 2,885 1,470
EMS/Jaws of Life 21,760 34,973 21,764 11,209
Fire 36,500 36,500 34,250 2,250
Flood Ptain Permit 3,000 3,475 3475 0
JT.PA 0 0 0 0
LN.RA. 54,634 54,64 54,388 236
Marine Rescue 0 0 0 0
Sheqiff 1,568,478 1,603,618 1,113,035 490,583
TJP.C. 21,830 21,830 17,766 4,064
Enviromental Prolection
Sanitation 856,778 256,778 236,701 2,077
Cutture and Recreation
County Library 155,578 197,846 189,050 8,796
Fairgrounds 0
Packs 1,875 1875 1,536 339
Health and Welfare
Gulf 8end Mental Health 14,000 16,000 16,000 0
Sesior Citizens Centler 40,000 40,000 40,000 0
Conservation - Agriculture
Agricutture Exiension Service 82,605 82,805 68,682 13,923
U.S. Soll Conservation 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
Total Expenditures 7,264,052 7,367,680 6,211,075 1,156,605
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 438,365 435,437 2,033,079 1,697,642
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In 716,247 718,176 719,176 0
Operating Transfers Out ~ (2161,302)  (2,161,302)  (2,161,302) 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,445055)  (1,442,128)  (4,442,126) 0
Nel Changes in Fund Balances - Cash 8asis !$1,006.690! $$1.006,589! 590953  $1,597.642

Reconcilation from cash basis to modified accrual basis:

Residual Equity Transfer 11,088
Changes in Officers Fees and Sales Tax Receivable (27,843)
Changes in Prepaid Insurance 1,202
Changes in Accounts Payable 11,192
Changes in Accrued Wages Payable (43,824)
Net Changes in Fund Batances - Modified Accrua Basis 542,852
Fund Balances - Beginning 6.812,779
Fund Balances - Ending $7,355,631

The noles to the financial statements are an integral past of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Vaiance with
Final Budge! -
Budgeted Amounts Puositive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovemmental $45,170 $45,170 $21,204 ($23,966)
Licenses and Permits 525,201 525,201 552,457 27,256
Interest 7,050 7,050 7,783 743
Misceltaneous 19,067 31,367 77,647 45,280
Totat Revenues 596,480 508,788 658,101 50,313
EXPENDITURES
Current
Pubtic Transportation 2,318,198 2,330,499 1,908,741 421,758
Debt Seivice
Principal Retirement 21 515 27,515 28,595 (2,020)
Interest Retirement 6,425 6,425 4,405 2,020
Total Expenditures 2,352,198 2,364,499 1,942,741 421,758
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures . {1,755,711)  (1,755,711)  (1,283,640) 472,071
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of Capilal Assets 0
Operaling Transters In 1,900,888 1,900,889 1,950,899 50,010
Operating Transfers Out (507,721) (507,724)  (557.721) {50,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,393,168 1,393,168 1,393,178 10
Net Changes in Fund Balances _ ($362,543)  ($362,543) 108,538 $472,081
Reconci§ation from cash basis to modified accrual
Changes in Officers Fees and Sates Tax Recelvable (2,610
Changes in Prepaid Insurance (4,936)
Changes in Accounts Payable (67.077)
Changes in Accrued Wages Payabls {10,632)
Net Changes in Fund Balances-Modified Accrual Basis 24,283
Fund Balances - Beginning 348,562
fund 8alances - Ending $372,845

The notes lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cuirent Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables (net of allowance
for uncoltectibles)

Prepaid Insurance

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets
Land
Construction in Progress
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Total Capital Assets
Less Accurmulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (net of
accumutated depreciation)
Total Noncuiment Assels

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY
AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities

Cumenl Liabilties(Payable from Cument Assets)

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages Payable

Compensated Absances
Total Cument Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

Other Other Total
Ajrpont Airport Proprietary  Proprielay  Propnetary
Fung Fund Funds Funds Funds
Current Prior Current Prior Cument
Year Year Year Year Yeqr
$48,076 $16,808 $2,705 $966 $50,781
12,734 7,893 12,734
1,501 1,459 0 0 1,501
62,311 26,160 2,705 966 65,016
70,254 70,254 70,254
117,581 87,546 117,581
345,036 345,036 346,036
85,607 79,732 85,607
479,083 479,083 479,083
1,097,561 1,061,651 0 0 1,097,561
(538,8684) (487,886) (538,884)
558,677 573,785 0 0 558,677
858,677 573,765 0 0 558,677
$620,988 $599,025 $2,705 $966 $623,693
$10,047 $7,968 $183 $361 $10,230
0
0
10,047 7,968 183 361 10,230
10,047 7,968 183 361 10,230
558,677 573,765 558,677
52,264 18,192 2522 605 54,786
$610,941 $591,957 $2522 $605 $613,463

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sexvices

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Sesvices

Supplies

Other Services and Charges
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES);
Interest income

Federa! Grant

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Income Before Transfers
Transfers ln

Change in Net Assels
Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

Other Other Total
Alrport Alrport Proprielary  Proprietary  Propietary
Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
Cument Prior Cumeni Prior Cument
Year Year Year Year Year
$11,374 $43,035 $10,807 $6,627 $22,271
11,374 43,035 10,897 6,627 22,271
0 0 0
220 25,249 7,508 6,675 7,815
9,540 11,639 1,385 1,914 10,925
50,998 54,575 50,998
60,758 91,463 8,980 8,589 69,738
(49,384) (48,428) 1,917 (1,962) (47,467)
307 3 5 307
33,334 76,853 33,334
33,841 76,906 0 5 33 641
(15,743) 28,478 1,917 (1,957) (13,826)
34,727 0 0 0 34,727
18,984 28,478 1,817 (1,957) 20,901
581,957 563,479 605 2,562 592,562
$610,941 $591,957 $2522 $605 $613,463

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

fOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Cash flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Suppliers

Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided(Used) By Operaling Activities:

Cash Flows from Non-Capital
and Related Financing Activities
Transfers In

Nel Cash Provided(Used) By Non-Capital
and Relaled Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activilies
State Grant

Net Cash Provided(Used) By Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Aclivities

Purchases of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Caphial
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activiiies
Interest Recelved

Net Cash Provided(Used) By investing Aclivities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Baginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
(continued)

Other Other Toal
Airport Airport Propiietary ~ Proprietary  Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
Current Prior Currenl Prior Cument
Year Year Year Year Year
$6,533 $35,142 $10,897 $6,627 $17,430
7,123) (29,148) {9,158) (8,483) (15,881)
0 (4,500) 0 0 0
(1,190) 1,454 1,738 {1,856) 549
34,727 0 0 0 34,727
34,727 0 0 0 34,727
33,34 76,853 0 0 33,334
33,334 76,853 0 0 33,34
(35,910) (68,236) 0 0 (35,910)
(35,910) (88,236) 0 0 (35,910)
307 53 0 S 307
307 53 0 5 307
31,268 (9,836) 1,739 (1,851) 33,007
16,808 26,644 966 2,817 17,774
$43,076 $16,808 $2,705 $966 $50,781

23



(continued)

Reconciliation of Operating lncome 1o Net Cash
Provided(Used) By Operaling Aciivities

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile o Net Cash Flow
Non-Cash llems Included in Net Income
Depreciation

Changes in Current llems

Decrease(Increase) in Accounts Receivable
Decrease(Increase) in Prepaid Insurance
Increase{Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase{Decease) in Accrued Wages Payabla
Increase(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable

Net Cash Provided(Used) by Operating
Activities

Noncash Invesling, Capital and Financing Activities:
Borrowing from Capital Debt

Note: The above funds are all Enterpse Funds

(349,384)  (348,428) $1.917 ($1,962) ($47,467)
50,998 54 575 0 0 50,998
(4.841) (7.893) 0 0 (4,841)

(42) 70 0 0 (42)

2,07 7,670 {178) 106 1,901

0 (2.236) 0 0 0

0 (2,265) 0 0 0
 {§1,190) $1,494 $1.739 (31,856) $549
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pari of this statement.



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Recelvables (net of allowance for uncollactibles)
Total Assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due lo Others
Total Liabitities

NET ASSETS

Held in Trust-Unexpendable

Held in Trust-Educational Purposes
Total Nel Assets

Trust

Fund
Brackenridge

Agency School

Funds fund
$1,327,610 $50,000

2,025

$1,329,635 $50,000
0 0
1,329,635 0
1,329,635 0
0 50,000
0 0
$0 $50,000

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS Trust
FIDUCIARY FUNDS Fund
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 Brackenridge
School
Fund
ADDITIONS -
Contributions:
Privale Oonalions
Tolal Contributions
lnvestment Eamings:
Interest Recetved
Total Investment Eamings
Less lnvesiment Expense
Net [nvestment Eamings
TOTAL ADDITIONS

o|8

Qoo oo

DEDUCTIONS

Cutture and Recreation-Librades
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assels 0
Net Assets-Beginning 50,000
Nel Assets-Ending —§50,000

The notes 1o the financial statements are an mtegral par of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A.

Reporting entity

Jackson County operates under a County Judge — Commissioners’ Court type of
government and provides the following services throughout the County: public safety (fire,
ambulance, and law enforcement), environmental protections (sanitation), public
transportation (highways and roads), health and welfare, culture and recreation,
conservation (agriculture), public facilities, judicial and legal, election functions, and
general and financial administrative services.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities
of the primary govemment and its component units. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for

support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the govemnment-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
perod are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of
the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the governrment's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The road and bridge fund accounts for the activities of the government's road and bridge
operations.

The district clerk reserve fund accounts for montes held by the district clerk.
The community development grant fund accounts for monies used for capital grants.

The airport fund accounts for airport activities.
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported
for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the Government and the District to invest in obligations of
the U.S. Treasury. Investments for the Government are reported at fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "intemal
balances."
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D.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (continued)

2.

Receivables and Payables (continued)

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by
a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that
they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
resources.

All property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. The
property tax receivable allowance is equal to a total of 1 percent of the current
outstanding property taxes at September 30, 2012 and 10 percent of the delinquent
outstanding property taxes at Septemmber 30, 2012.

Property is appraised and a lien on such property becomes enforceable as of
January 1, subject to certain procedures for rendition, appraisal, appraisal review
and judicial review. Traditionally, property taxes are levied October 1, of the year
in which assessed or as soon thereafter as practicable. Taxes are due and payable
when levied since that is when the County bills the taxpayers. The County begins
to collect the taxes as soon as the taxpayers are billed.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of materials and supplies held by the General Fund are considered
immaterial and thus are not accounted for in the Balance Sheet. In the General
Fund, disbursements for supplies and materials are considered to be expenditures
at the time of purchase. There were no inventory items at September 30, 2012.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Restricted Assets

There were no restricted assets at September 30, 2012.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Infrastructure
items such as roads, highways, and bridges are not included. '

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-
type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The
County had a disaster mitigation project during the year ended September 30, 2012.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 40
Building Improvements 20
System Infrastructure 15-35
Vehicles 5
Office Equipment 5
Computer Equipment 5
Compensated Absences

It i3 the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate eamned but unused
vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave
since the government does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate
from service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
government-wide financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related
debt.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiurns received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. [ssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

As of September 30, 2012, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as
follows:

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other
governments.

Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal
action of Commissioners’ Court. Commissioners’ Court is the highest level of decision-
making authority for the County. Commitments may be established, modified, or
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by Commissioners’ Court.
Unassigned — all other spendable amounts.

As of September 30, 2012, fund balances are composed of the following;

Fund Balances:
Non-Spendable

Prepaid items $69,839
Resfricted
General Administration 89,437
Culture and Recreation 8,398
Judicial 86,522
Legal 17,535
Penmanent Improvement 285,341
Public Safety 169,945
Public Transportation 360,993
Committed
Culture and Recreation 52,568
Health and Welfare 12,006
Public Safety 40,487
Unassigned 7,013,351
Total Fund Balance $8,207 422
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When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the County considers restricted funds to have been spent first.
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund
balances are available, the County considers amounts to have been spent first out of
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless
Commissioners’ Court or the finance committee has provided otherwise in its commitment
or assignment actions.

In fiscal year 2011, the Commissioners’ Court adopted a minimum fund balance policy for
the General Fund. The policy requires the unassigned fund balance at fiscal year end to be
at least equal to 25 percent of the subsequent year's budgeted General Fund expenditures.

Comparative data/reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for individual enterprise
funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes
in the financial position and operations of these funds. Also, certain amounts presented in
the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's
presentation.

Reconciliation of Govemment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet
and the government-wide statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance
- total governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in
the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation
explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The
details of this $513,893 difference are as follows:

Capital Lease Payable §63,457
Other Post Employment Benefits 329,727
Compensated Absences 120,708

$513,893
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Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet
and the govemment-wide statement of net assets. (continued)

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances includes reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Govemnmental funds” report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
The details of this $7,021,831 difference are as follows:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated $689,537
Capital Assets Being Depreciated 15,863,170
Depreciation Expense {9,540,876)
Net Adjustment to

Increase Net Changes
in Fund Balances - Total
Governmental Funds to

Arrive at Changes in
Net Assets of
Governmental Activities $7,021,831

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance
- total governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in
the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation
explains that "Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period
expenditures are deferred in the funds (net of allowance for uncollectible.") The
details of this $418,740 difference are as follows:

Property Taxes Regeivable $455,706
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (36,966)
Net $418,740

The govemmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance
- total governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in
the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation
explains that "Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.” The details of this $585,567
difference are as follows:

Fines and Fees Receivable $844,354
Grants Receivable 13,159
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (271,946)
Net $585,567
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Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances includes reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”

The details of this $847,826 difference are as follows:

Capilal Outlay - Additions - Not Being

Depreciated $458,116
Capital Outlay - Additions - 8eing Depreciated 450,955
Capiltal Outlay - Deletions (963,143)
Depreciation Expense (803,754)
Net Adjustment to

Increase Net Changes
in Fund Balances - Total
Govermnmental Funds to
Arive at Changes in
Net Assets of

Govemimental Activities !3847.8262
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Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A.

Budgetary Information

The onginal budget is adopted by the Commissioners’ Court and filed with the
County Clerk. Amendments are made during the year on approval by the
Commissioners’ Court.

The final amended budget is used in this report.

The budget should not be exceeded in any expenditure category under State law.
Unused appropriations lapse at the end of each year.

The County Judge is, by statute, the Budget Officer of the County. He usually
requests and relies on the assistance of the County Auditor to prepare the annual
budget. After being furnished budget guidelines by the Comunissioners’ Court, the
County Auditor prepares an estimate of revenues and a compilation of requested
departmental expenditures and submits this data to the Commissioners” Court.

The Commissioners’ Court invites various department heads to appear for a
hearing concerning the departments' budget requests. Before determining the final
budget, the Commissioners’ Court may increase or decrease the amounts requested
by the various departments. Amounts finally budgeted may not exceed the County
Auditor's estimate of revenues and available cash. The final budget can be legally
amended by the Commissioners’ Court to whatever extent the Court desires as
long as the amended figures do not exceed the County Auditor's estimate of
revenues and available cash.

When the Budget has been adopted by the Commissioners’ Court, the County
Auditor is responsible for monitoring the expenditures of the various departments
of the County to prevent expenditures from exceeding budgeted appropriations and
for keeping the members of the Commissioners’ Court advised of the condition of
the various funds and accounts. The level of control for each legally adopted
annual operating budget is the line item. Budgets for all budgeted General and
Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a budgetary basis which is not in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgets for the
2012 fiscal year were adopted for the General Fund, the Road and Bridge Funds,
and other applicable non-major governmental funds.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended September 30, 2012, expenditures did not exceed
appropriations in any fund.

Deficit fund equity

The county had no deficit fund balances as of September 30, 2012,
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IV,

Detailed Notes on All Funds

A.

Deposits and Investments
Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits and Investments:

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains
specific provisions in the areas of investment practices, management reports and
establishment of appropriate policies. Among other things, it requires the County
to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address
the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio
diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected
rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments,
(7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated
maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and
bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the County
to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the
State of Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securties, (4)
money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers
acceptances, (7) Mutual Funds, (8) Investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment
contracts, (10) and common trust funds. The Act also requires the County to have
independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment practices as
provided by the Act. The County is in compliance with the requirements of the Act
and with local policies.

Policies Governing Deposits and Investments:

The County has adopted a deposit and investment policy and the county addresses
the following risks:

Custodial credit risk - deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be retumed to it. The
government has a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of September 30,
2012, the government’s bank balance of $9,424,713 was not exposed to custodial
credit risk because it was fully insured by the U.S. Government and/or the State of
Texas and/or is collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution’s trust department or agent, in the government’s name. The fair market
value of the securities pledged is $20,923,435 and the FDIC coverage is $424,052.

Interest rate risk: In accordance with its investment policy, the government
manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average
maturity of its investment portfolio to less than twelve months.

Credit risk: State [aw limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds
to the top two rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations
(NRSROs). It is the govemment’s policy to limit its investments in these
investment types to the top rating issued by NRSROs. As of September 30, 2012
the local investment pool Texpool (approximately 47% of portfolio) was rated
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and Texas CLASS (approximately 53% of
portfolio) was rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.
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A. Deposits and Investments (continued)

Concentration of credit risk: The County places no limit on the amount the
County may invest in any one issuer. Approximately 47 percent of the County’s
investments are in Texpool and 52 percent of the County’s investments are in
Texas CLASS.

Custodial credit risk — investments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover
the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.

As of September 30, 2012, the government had the following investments:

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years) Weighted Average
Texpool § 444875 Less than | year Less than 1 year
Texas Class 503,928 Less than | year Less than 1 year

The County participates in two Local Government Investment Pools:

The State Comptroller oversees TexPool, with a third party managing the daily operations of the
pool under contract. The Texas Class account is covered by insurance provided by Texas Class.
The County invests in TexPool to provide its liquidity needs. TexPool is a local government
investment pool established in conformity with the Inter-local Cooperation Act Chapter 791 of the
Texas Government Code and the Public Investment Act Chapter 2256 of the Code. TexPool is a
2(a) 7 like funds meaning that they are structured similar to a money market mutual fund. Such
funds allow shareholders the ability to deposit or withdraw funds on a daily basis. Interest rates
are adjusted daily and the fund seeks to maintain a constant net asset value of $1.00, although this
cannot be guaranteed. TexPool is rated AAAm and must maintain a weighted average maturity not
to exceed 60 days. At September 30, 2012 TexPool had a weighted average maturity of 34 and 28
days respectively. The County cousiders the holdings in this fund to have a one day weighted
average maturity. This is due to the fact that the share position can usually be redeemed each day
at the discretion of the shareholder short of a significant change in value. The TexPool fund is
within the Governmental Activities.

The County also invests in Texas Class. Texas CLASS is a local government investment pool
emphasizing safety, liquidity, convenience and competitive yield Since 1996, Texas CLASS has
provided Texas public entities a safe and competitive investment alternative. Texas CLASS
invests only in securities allowed by the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. Texas CLASS
carries a letter of credit that ensures the integrity of the fund, making it the only investment pool
in Texas backed by a letter of credit. The pool is governed by a board of trustees, elected annually
by its participants. Texas CLASS is rated 'AAAm' by Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services. The
'AAAm' principal stability fund rating is the highest assigned to principal stability government
investment pools and is a direct reflection of Texas CLASS's outstanding credit quality and
management.
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Receivables
Receivables as of September 30, 2012 for the government's individual major funds
and non-major, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable

allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Road  Community Other
General and  Development Govemmental Proprietary
Fund Bridge Grant Funds Funds Total

Receivables

Ad Valorem Taxes 455,706 $0 $0 $0 $0  $455,706
Sales Tax 137,330 137,330
Fines 844,354 844,354
Intergovernmental 13,159 111,530 56,369 181,058
Other 23,954 2,959 6,596 12,734 46,243
Gross Receivables 1474503 2,859 111,530 62,965 12,734 1,664,661
Less: Allowance for

Uncollectibles 308,912 308,812
Net Total Receivables  $1,165,591  $2,959 $111,530 $62,965 $12,734 81,355,779

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with
resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and uneamed revenue
reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable
Delinquent Property Taxes
Receivable (General Fund)-Net $418,740
Other 825
Total Deferred/Unearned
Revenue for Govemmental Funds $419,565

There was no uneamed revenue reported in the governmental funds during the
year.
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C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Govemmental Activities; Balances Increases Decreases  Balances
Capilal Assets Not 8eing Depreciated:
Land $429,877 $0 $0  $420877
Construction in Progress 774,268 458,116 962,724 269,660

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 1,204,145 458,116 962,724 699,537

Capila! Assets Being Deprecialed:

Building and Improvements 5,478,598 52,619 0 5531297
Machinery and Equipment 7477450 398,326 1158470 7,760,005
Infragtructure 2,561,837 10,011 0 2,571,948
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 15,617,685 460,955 115,470 15,863,170
Less Accaumulated Oepreciation for:

Building and Improvements 2,922,050 175632 0 3,097,682
Machinery and Equipment 5309998 511,073 115,051 5,706,020
Infrastructure 620,125 117,049 0 737,174
Total Accumulated Depreciation 8,852,173 803,754 115,061 9,540,876
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 6,665,512 (342,798) 413 6,322,284

Govemnmental Activities Capital Assets, Net  $7,869,657 $115317  $963,143  $7,021,831

Beginning Ending
Business-Type Activities: Balances Increases Decreases  Balances
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $70,254 $0 §0  $70,254
Construction in Progress 87,546 30,035 0 117,581
Tota) Capital Assets Not 8eing Depreciaied 157,800 30,035 0 187,835
Capital Assets Being Deprecialed:
Building and Improvements 345,036 0 0 345,036
Machinery and Equipment 79,732 5875 0 85607
Infrastructure 479,083 0 0 478,083
Tota Capital Assets Being Oepreciated 903,851 5,875 0 909,726
Less Accurmulated Oepreciation for:
Building and Improvements 196,662 14,616 0 214,278
Machinery and Equipment 20,410 4,340 0 24,750
Infrastructure 270,814 32,042 0 302856
Total Accumulated Depreciation 487,886 50,998 0 538,884
Total Capitat Assets Being Depreciated, Net 415,965  (45,123) 0 370,842
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net  $573,765 ($15,088) $0 $558,677

Construction commitments

The County had a disaster mitigation project during the year ended September 30, 2012.
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Capital asset depreciation for the year ended September 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Ceneral Administration $26.001
Legal 288
Judicial 17,396
Financial Administration 22429
Public Facilities 152,622
Public Safety 222 446
Public Transportation 303,396
Environmental Protection 23,408
Culture and Recraation 34,753
Health and Welfare 51
Conservation - Agriculture 964

Tota) Depreciation Expense — Governmental Activities ~ $803,754

Business-Type Activilies
Culture and Recreation $50,998
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activites  $50,998
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D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
Due to/from other funds:
There were no interfund balances as of September 30, 2012.
There were no advances at September 30, 2012.
The following are transfers for the year ended September 30, 2012.
TRANSFER
IN
NON-MAJOR

ROADAND  GOVERN-
GENERAL  BRIDGE MENTAL  PROPRIETARY

TRANSFER QUT FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL
GENERAL FUND $2,465,681  $1,393,178 $17,150 $34,727 $3,810,736
ROAD AND BRIDGE FUNDS 557,721 857,721
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 14,017 14,047
TOTALS $2,479.698  $1,950,899 $17,1%0 $34,727 34,482,474

The transfer from the general to the road and bridge fund is for road and bridge operations.
These transfers are all recurring.
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E. Leases

Operating Leases:

The government leases equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Total costs for
such leases were $24,586 for the year ended September 30, 2012. The future minimum
lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Year Ending Sept. 30, Amount
2013 $21,834
2014 18,096
2015 5,770
Total $45.700

F. Long-Term Debt

Capital Leases: The government has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing
the acquisition of one (1) excavator. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for
accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of its future
minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Govemmental
Aciivities
ASSET EXCAVATOR  TOTAL
COST $249,122 $249,122
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION (249,122} {249,122)
NET ASSET $0 $0
Governmental
YEAR Activities Total
2013 $34,000 $34,000
2014 34,000 34,000
TOTAL MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS 68,000 68,000
LESS: AMOUNT REPRESENTING INTEREST 4,543 4,543
PRESENT VALUE OF NET MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS $63,457 $63,457

The above debt is to be serviced by the General Fund and the Road and Bridge funds.
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Long-Term Debt (continued)
The activity for the year ended September 30, 2012, were as follows:

Beginning Ending  Due Within  Dus After
Balance  Addiions Reductions Balance One Year One Year

Govemmental Activilies:

Lease Purchase Payable ~ $93,052 $20,594  $53,458 $30,995  §$32483
GASB 45 Payabla 329,727 0 329727 0 329727
Compensated Absences 132,696 120,709 132,596 120,709 120,709 0

$555,375 $120,709  $162190 $513.894  $151,704 $362,190

Business-Type Activities:

Compensated Absences 0 0 $0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand Total $555,375 $120,709  $162,190 $513,894  §151,704 $362,190

The general fund, the road and bridge fund, and the airport fund are used to service
the compensated absences. The estimated amount due in the 2012-13 year is
$120,7009.

The government-wide statement of activities includes $151,704 as "noncurrent
liabilities, due within one year".

The interest incurred on the above debt was $4,405 and was governmental
activities. There was no business-type activity interest incurred or capitalized.

44



V.

Other [nformation

A

Risk Management

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which
the government carries commercial insurance. There were no instances where
settlements exceeded insurance coverage in any of the three previous years.

Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount
for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). The result of the
process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on
many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage
awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of
inflation, recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-
outs), and other economic and social factors. The estimate of the claims liability
also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to
specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether
allocated to specific claims. Estimated recoveries, for example from salvage or
subrogation, are another component of the claims liability estimate.

Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2012  September 30, 2011
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year 30 $0
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 0 0
Claim payments 0 0
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $0 $0
Related Party Transaction

There were no related party transactions requiring disclosure.

Subsequent Events

The county released a claim against Michels Corporation for 4.3 miles of damage
on County Road 284, for the sum of $330,000.

Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability
of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed
by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the government expects
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial,

The County was not a defendant in any lawsuit at September 30, 2012.
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Retirement Plan
Plan Description

The County provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for all of its full-
time employees through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the
statewide Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). The Board of
Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the administration of the statewide agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement system consisting of 602
nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The
CAFR is available upon written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at
P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034,

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the
options available in the Texas state statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act).
Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 8 or more years of service, with 30
years of service regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service
equals 75 or more. Members are vested after 8 years of service but must leave
their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed
benefit. Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are not
entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the
plan, with interest, and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these
monetary credits is adopted by the governing body of the employer within the
actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefits can
be expected to be adequately financed by the employer’s commitment to
contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by
converting the sum of the employee’s accumulated contributions and the employer-
financed monetary credits to a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates
prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

Funding Policy

The employer has elected the annually determined contribution rate (ADCR) plan
provisions of the TCDRS Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from
both employee members and the employer based on the covered payroll of
employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer
is actuarially determined annually.

The governing body elected to pay a rate of 8.57% for the 2011 and 9.39% for the
2012 year that did not exceed the actuarially determined rate as allowed by the
provisions of the TCDRS Act.

The contribution rate payable by the employee members for calendar year 2011 and
2012 is the rate of 7% as adopted by the governing body of the employer. The
employee contribution rate and the employer contribution rate may be changed by
the governing body of the employer within the options available in the TCDRS
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Asset valuation method

Act.

Actuarial Valuation Information

Actuarial valuation date

Actuanial cost method
Amortization method

Amortization period

12/31/2009

entry age
level percentage
of payroll, closed

20.0

SAF: [0-yr smoothed

value ESF: Fund

value
Actuarial Assumptions

Investment return 8.00%
Projected salary

increases 5.4%
Inflation 3.5%
Cost-of-living
adjustments 0.00%

12/31/2010 12/31/2011
entry age entry age
level percentage level percentage

of payroll, closed of payroll, closed

20.0 20.0
SAF: 10-yr smoothed SAF: 10-yr smoothed
value ESF: Fund value ESF: Fund
value value

8.00% 8.00%

5.4% 5.4%

3.5% 3.5%

0.00% 0.00%

Annual Pension Cost

Trend Information for the Retirement Plan for the Employees of Jackson County, Texas

Actuanal
Valuation
Date

2011

Accounting Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension

Ending Cost (APC Contributed Obligation
9-30-10 319,059 100% -0-
9-30-11 316,245 100% -0-
9-30-12 337,408 100% -0-

ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuanal Unfunded Funded Annual UAAL as a2
Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Covered Percentage
Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) (a/b) Payroll of Payroll

@ (b) (b-2) (©) ((b-a)/c)
$10,679,326 $12,467,658 $1,788,332 85.66% $3,641,428 49.11%

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information (RSI) immediately following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

47



Post Employment Benefits Other than Pension Benefits

In order to receive health insurance funding through Jackson County an employee must be a full time
employee covered under the County's group insurance shall be eligible for continued group insurance
coverage only upon retirement from the County.

Effective January 1, 2005, in order to be eligible for the insurance retirement benefit, a person must be a
regular full time employee of Jackson County for the last eight (8) consecutive years, and must be
eligible to retire from County service by meeting the County's and TCDRS's eligibility requiremnent for
retirement benefits. Those eligible shall include regular, full time employees who are paid from the
general fund of the County, from a special fund of the County, or from special grants paid through the
County.

Jackson County will pay a percentage of the retired employee's premium until the retired employee
reaches the age of sixty five (65) and/or becomes eligible for Medicare benefits due to a Medicare
eligibility such as a disability, based upon years of service to Jackson County, as follows:

YEARS COUNTY PORTION
OF

SERVICE

8to 19 50%

20to0 24 75%

25 to 30 80%

30 or more 100%

The County’s group insurance will be the primary insurance until a retiree is eligible for Medicare and
will cease when a retiree becomes Medicare eligible. At that time, Medicare will become the primary
insurance for the retiree.

If dependent coverage is desired, the retiree will be responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of the
premium.

The County elected to implement prospectively.

The County also will have an actuarial review done every two years.
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Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The County's annual other post employment benefits (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameter of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of accrual that is projected to
recognize the normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuanal liabilities (or funding
excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The County had its first OPEB actuarial valuation
performed for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008 as required by GASB. The annual OPEB cost
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011, is as follows:

Annual required contribution $168,531
OPEB Retiree Costs (109,132)
Net estimated employer contributions 35,762
Increase in net OPEB obligation 95,161
Net OPEB obligation - as of beginning of the year 234,566
Net OPEB obligation (asset) - as of end of year $329.727
Accounting Annual Percentage Net
Year OPEB of OPEB OPEB
Ending Cost Contributed Obligation
9-30-09 $264,529 11.33% $234,566
9-30-10 264,529 11.33 234,566
9-30-11 168,531 27.74 326,727
Funding status and funding progress
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Annual UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Covered Percentage
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) (a/b) Payroll of Payroll
Date (@) () (b-2) © ((b-a)/c)
9/30/201 1 $0 $1,800,244 $1,800,244 00.0% $3,200,000 55.39%

Under the reporting parameters, the County's retiree health care plan is 0% funded with an estimated
actuarial accrued liability exceeding actuarial assets by $1,800,244 at September 30, 2011.
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Actuarial methods and assumptions

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the County's
retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial
assummptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then
provides for a systematic recognition of the cost of these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is
computed to cover the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion
of the unfunded accrued liability.

Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the County and include the types of
benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattem of sharing benefit costs between the County and its
employees to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

[nvestment rate of return 4.5%, net of expenses

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit Cost Method
Amortization method Level as a percentage of payroll
Growth Rate 3.0% per annum

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status and the annual
required contributions of the County's retiree health care plan are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required
schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear trend
information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Annual
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) (a/b) Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-2) (c)
2009 $10,997,706 $12,429,515 $1,431,809 88.50% $3,949,998
2010 10,496,802 12,069,711 1,572,909 86.97 3,719,799
2011 10,679,326 12,467,658 1,788,332 85.66 3,641,428
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT PLAN
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Annual
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) (a/b) Payroll
Date @ () (b-8) ©
9/30/2009 $0 $2,681,225 $2,681,225 00.0% $000,000
9/30/2010 N/A
9/30/2011 $0 $1,800,244 $1,800,244 00.0% $3,250,000
9/30/2012 N/A
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Percentage
of Payroll
((b-2)/c)

36.30%
42.28
49.11

UAALasa
Percentage
of Payroll

((b-2)/c)
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - {CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgetad Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovermental $133,163 $1,129,327 §$1,129,327 $0
Total Revenues 133,163 1,129,327 1,129,327 0
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outiay
Capita Outiay 133,163 1129327 1,129,327 0
Total Expenditures 133,163  1,129327 1,129,327 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 0 0 0 0
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In 0
Operating Transfers Out 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances 30 $0 0 $0
Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual basis:
Changes in Grants Receivable 111,530
Changes in Accounts Payable (73,557)
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual 8asis 37,973
Fund Balances - Beginning (37.973)
Fund Balances - Ending 30
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COMBINTNG AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - GENERAL FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)
Prepald Insurance
Dua from Other Funds
Total Assets

UABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages Payable

Deferred Ravenues
Total Liabiities

Fund Balances:
Non-Spendable
Prepaid Items
Restricted
Pormanent Improvement
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabllities and Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this stalement.

Sales Permanent Total

Ganeral Tax improvement  General

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$7,049,587 30 $285,341  §7,334928
455,853 137,330 593,183
56,939 56,839
0
$7,562,379  $137,30 $285.341  $7,385,050
§82.000 30 $82,099
121,155 127,755
419,565 419,565
£29,419 0 0 523,418
56,319 56,939
285,341 285,341
6,876,021 137,330 7,013,354
6,932,960 137,330 285341 7,385,631
$7562,379  $137,330 $285,341  $7,985,050
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Sales Permanent Total

General Tax Improvement  Genesal
Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes
Property $5.469,466 $0 $0  $5,469,466
Sales 1,110,996 1,110,996
Other 48,490 48,490
Intergovemmental 281,953 291,953
Charges for Services 621,350 621,350
Fines and Fodeitures 499,227 499,227
Interest 71,338 8772 2,186 83,276
Misceflaneous 90,587 90,587
Total Revenues 7093411 1,120,768 2,166 8,218,345
EXPENDITURES
Current,
General Adminisiration
County Judge 145,503 145,503
Commissioner's Court 283,587 283,687
County Clerk 290,424 290,421
Election 15918 15918
Non-Oeparimental 356,165 356,165
Judicid
District Court 84,199 64,198
District Clerk 175,664 175,664
Justice of the Peace No. 1 134,068 134,069
Justice of the Peace No. 2 128,579 128,579
Criminal District Attomey 325,335 325,335
Courl Expense 124,611 121611
Jury 22,058 22,058
Financial Admintstration
County Auditor 229,899 229,899
County Treasurer 125,181 125,181
Tax Assessor-Collector 303,746 303,746
Public F acifiies
Public Faciilies 359,978 80,496 420474
Public Salety
Aduit Probation 2,458 2,458
Ambulance 23,650 29,650
Civil Defense 85,914 85,914
Constadle No. 1 66,329 66,328
Constable No. 2 63,928 63,928
Corrections 1,018,703 1,018,703
0.0 8. /Licensa and Weight 1,385 1,385
D.P.S.MTroopers 2,885 2,885
EMS/aws o Life 23,785 23,785
Fire 31,750 31,750
Flood Plain Permnil 4,447 4,447
LN.RA. 55,190 55,180
Sherift 1,140,053 1,140,053
TJ.PC. 17,611 17,611
{continued)



(continued)

Enviromental Protection
Sanitation 237,190 237,190
Cutture and Recreation
County Libsary 190,334 190,334
Parks 987 987
Fairgrounds 0
Heajth and Welfare
Gulf Bend Mental Health 16,000 16,000
Senior Citizens Center 40,000 40,000
Conservation - Agriculture
Agricuiture Extenslon Service 69,347 69,347
U.S. Soil Conservalion 2,000 2,000
Tota! Expenditures 5,184,958 0 60,496 5,242,455
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 911,452 1,120,768  (58,330) 1,973,890
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers in 2,313,451 166,247 2,479,698
Operating Transfers Out _(1,611,302) (2,288,434 (3.910,736)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 702,148 (2,239,434) 166,247 (1,431,038)
Net Changes in Fund Balances 1,613,601 (1,178,666) 107,817 542,852
Fund Balances - Beginning 5,319,359 1,315,996 177,424 6,812,778
Fund Balances - Ending $6.932960  $137,330 $285,341  $7,355,631

The accompanying notes ara an integral part of this statement
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 390, 2012

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY

AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities

Cuirant Liabittles(Payable from Currenl Assets)
Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages Payable

TYotal Current Liapllities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
tnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related debl

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTALS TOTALS
JAIL JAIL NON-MAJOR  NON-MAJOR
COMMISSARY COMMISSARY PROPRIETARY PROPRIETARY
CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT PRIOR
YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR
$2,705 $966 $2,705 $966
2,705 966 2,705 966
$2,705 $966 $2,705 $966
183 361 183 361
0 0
183 361 183 361
183 361 183 361
2,522 605 2522 605
$2,522 $605 $2,522 $605

The notes lo the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Seyvices

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal Servicss

Supplies

Other Services and Charges

Deprediation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest Income

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)

{tncome Before Transfers
Transfers In

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beglaning

Totat Net Assels - Ending

TOTALS TOTALS

JAKL JAIL NON-MAJOR  NON-MAJOR

COMMISSARY COMMISSARY PROPRIETARY PROPRIETARY
CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT PRIOR
YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR

$10,897 $6,627 $10,897 $6,627

10,897 6,627 10,897 6,627

0 0

7,595 6,675 7,595 6,675

1,385 1914 1,385 1,014

0 0

8,980 8,580 8,980 8,589

1917 {(1.962) 1917 (1.962)

5 0 5

0 5 0 5

1917 {1,957) 1,947 (1.957)

0 0

1,917 (1.957) 1,917 (1,957)

605 2,562 605 2,562

$2,522 $605 $2522 $605

The notes fo the financial statements are an Integral past of this statement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Cash flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Suppliers

Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided{Used) By Operating Activities:

Cash Flows from Non-Capita
and Relaled Financing Activities
Transters In

Nal Cash Provided(Used) By Non-Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flaws from lnvesting Activitles
Interest Received

Net Cash Provided{Used) By Investing Activities
Net increase (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents al Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
(continued)

TOTALS TOTALS

JAIL JAIL NON-MAJOR  NON-MAJOR

COMMISSARY COMMISSARY PROPRIETARY PROPRIETARY
CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT PRIOR
YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR

$10,897 $6,627 $10,897 $6,627

(9,158) (8,483) (3,158) (8.483)

0 0 0 0

1,739 - (1,856) 1,730 {1,856)

0 0

0 0 0 0

0 5 0 5

0 5 0 5

1,739 (1,851) 1,739 (1.851)

966 2,817 966 2817

£ $2,705 $966 $2,705 $966
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{continusd)
Reconciliation of Operating income to Net Cash

Provided{Used) By Operaling Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $1,917 ($1,962) $1,917 ($1,962)
Adjustments 1o Reconcile to Net Cash Flow

Non-Cash ltems Included in Net Income

Depreciation 0 0

Changes in Current Items
Increase{Decrease) in Accounts Payable (178) 108 (178) 106
Increase{Decreass) in Accrued Wages Payable 0 0 0 0
Net Cash Pravided{Used) by Operating $1,738 {$1.856) $1,739 ($1,856)
Activities
Noncash lnvesting, Capital and Financing Activities:
Borrowing from Capital Debl $0 $0 30 $0

Note: The above funds are all Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral pan of this slatement.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Agency Funds
County-Wide County

Trust Slate Drainage Officer
ASSETS Investment Fees District Accounts Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents $686,426 §61,835 $0 $579,349  $1,327,610
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 0 0 2,025 0 2,025
Total Assets $686,426 $61,835 $2,025  $579,349 §1,329,635
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable %0 $0
Due to Others 686,426 61,835 2,025 579,349 1,329,635
Total Liabilities $686,426 $51,835 $2,025 $579,349  $1,329,635
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBSINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TRUST INVESTMENT

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Due to Others
Total Liabilities

STATE FEES
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Total Assels

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Due 1o Others
Total Liabilities

COUNTY-WIDE DRAINAGE DISTRICT
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Due to Others
Total Liabilities

BALANCE BALANCE
10/1/2011  ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS  9/30/2012
$76,315  $610,111 $0  §686,426
0
$76,315  $610,111 $0  9686,426
§76,315  §610,111 $0 9686426
$76,315  $5610,111 §0 686426
BALANCE BALANCE
10/1/2011  ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS  9/30/2012
$74,770 $0 $12,935 $61,835
0
$74.770 $0 $12,935 $61,835
$74,770 $0 $12,935 $61,835
$74,770 $0 $12,935 $61,835
BALANCE BALANCE
10/1/2011 ADDITIONS DEOUCTIONS  9/30/2012
$0 $0
$3,754 $2,025 $3,754 2,025
$3,754 $2,025 $3,754 $2,025
2,025 2,025
$3,754 0 3,754 0
$3,754 $2,025 $3,754
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BALANCE BALANCE
COUNTY OF FICER ACCOUNTS 10/1/2011 ADOITIONS DEDUCTIONS  9/30/2012
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $468,016  §111,33 $0  $579,349
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 0
Total Assets $468,016 $111,333 $0 $579,349
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Oue to Others $468,016  $111,333 $0  §579,349
Total Lishilities $468,016 $111,333 $0  $679,349
BALANCE BALANCE
TOTAL 10/1/2011 ADDITIONS ODEDUCTIONS  9/30/2012
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $619,101 $721.444 $12935 §1,327,810
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 3,754 2,025 3,754 2,025
Total Assets §622,855  §723,469 $16,689  $1,329,635
LIABILITIES:;
Accounts Payable $0 $2,025 $0 $2,025
Due to Others 622,855 721,444 16,683 1,327,610
Total Liabitities 3622855  $723,469 $16,889  $1,329,635
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
- BUDGET AND ACTUAL




JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
ABANDONED MOTOR VEHICLES

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES

Charges for Services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transters In
Operating Transfers Cut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Cash Basis

Recondiliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances-Modified Accrual Basis

Fund Balances - Beginning

fund Balances - Ending

69

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeled Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$2,000 $2,000 $4,883 $2,883

0 0 8§ 86
20,000 20,000 0 {20,000)
22,000 22,000 4,969 (17,031)
48,220 45,291 13,696 31,595
48,220 45,231 13,696 31,595
~{28,220) (23,291) {8,727) 14,564
0

0 {2,529) (2,929) 0

0 (2,929) (2.929) 0

 ($26220)  ($26,220)

($11,656)  §14,564

{11,856)

26,042

$14,386



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESY:
Operating Transfess In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Batances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

70

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Orlginat Final Actual (Negative) -

$1,200 $1,200 $1,480 $280
1,200 1,200 1,480 280
3,000 3,000 2,000 1,000
3,000 3,000 2,000 1,000
(1,800 {1,800) (520) 1,280
0
0
0 0 0 0

~{1,800) (1,800) (520) 1,280

2,809 2,909 2,908 0

$1,109 $1,109 $2,389 $1,280




JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CRILD WELFARE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES

Interest

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and Welfare
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operaling Transfess In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Balancss - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

71

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Aclual (Negative)

$50 $50 $64 $14
0
50 50 84 14
5,000 5,000 250 4,750
5,000 5,000 250 4,750
(4,950) {4.950) _{186) 4,764
0
0
0 0 0 0
{4,850) {4.950) _{186) 4,764
12,192 12,192 12,192 0
$7,242 $7,242 $12,006 $4,764




JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COASTAL IMPACT ASSISTANCE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Pasitive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $603,723  $603723  §239.218  ($364,505)
Interest 0 0 190 190
Total Revenues 603,723 603,723 239,408 (364,315)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and Recrealion 608,137 608,137 234,230 373,907
Total Expenditures 608,137 608,137 234,230 373,907
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (4414)  (4,414) 5178 9,592
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In 0
Operating Transfers Out 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances (4,414) (4414) 5178 9,592
Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Grants Receivable 37,903
Changes in Accounts Payable (32,098)
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis 10,983
Fund 8Balances - Beginning (1,585)
Fund Balances - Ending $9,338
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMMISSARY TELEPHONE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 39, 2012

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cuirent
Public Safety
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrval:
Changes in Officers Fees and Sales Tax Receivable
Changes in Accounts Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund 8alances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

73

Variance with
final Budget -

Budgeted Amaunts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

$28,000 $28,000 $35,647 $7,647
28,000 28,000 35,647 7,647
108,828 108,828 85,291 23,537
108,828 108,828 85,291 23,537

(80,828)  (80,828) (49,644) 31,184

0
0

0 0 0 0

(580,828)  (§80,828)  (49544)  $31,184

6,596

4304
83,535
$40,487



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COUNTY CLERK RECORDS MANAGEMENT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Administration
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}:
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Cash Basis

Recondiliation from cash basis to modified accrval:
Changes in Officers Fees and Sales Tax Receivable
Changes in Accounts Payable
Changes in Accrued Wages Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances-Modified Acorual Basis

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

74

Vasiance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amaunts Pasltive

QOriginal Final Actual (Negative)

$30,900 $30,900 $39,295 $8,395
0
30,900 30,900 39,295 8,385
135,916 135,916 86,985 48,931
135,916 135916 86,985 48,931

(105016)  (105,016)

{47,690) 57,326

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
($105016)  ($105016)  ($47.690)  §57,326
30
413
(48,073}
107,328
$59,255



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COUNTY RECORDS MANAGEMENT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeled Amounis Poaitive
Original Flnal Actual (Nepative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services $7,800 $7,300 $8,055 $1,255
Total Revenues 7,800 7,800 9,085 1,255
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Administration 27,643 27,643 4,216 23,427
Total Expenditures 27,643 27,643 4,216 23,427
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (19,843) (19,843) 4,839 24,682
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESY):
Operating Transfers In 0
Operating Transfars Out 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Yses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances ($19,843)  ($19,843) $4,839 $24,682
Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable 5
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modifiad Accrual Basis 4,844
Fund Balances - Beginning 23,650
Fund Balances - Ending $28,534
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COURT REPORTER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounis Pasitive
Original Finaf Aclual {Negatve)
REVENUES
Charges for Services $2,000 $2,000 $2,235 $235
Total Revenues 2,000 2,000 2,235 235
EXPENDITURES
Current
Judicial 6,000 6,000 250 5,750
Tolal Expenditures 6,000 6,000 250 5,750
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures {4,000) (4,000) 1,985 5.985
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESY).
Operating Transfers In 0
Operating Transfers Out __(7,044) (7,044)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 {7,044) (7,044)
Net Changes in Fund 8alances (§4,000) (34,000 ($5,059) 531,059!
Raconciliation from cash basis ta modified accrual basis:
Changes in Accounts Payable 15
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis (5,044)
Fund Balances - Beginning 5,044
Fund Balancas - Ending $0
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COURTHOUSE SECURITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES

Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Othar Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Officers Fees and Safes Tax Receivable
Changes in Accounts Payable

Changes in Accrued Wages Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund Bafances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

77

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Poslive

Original Final Aclual (Negativa)

$14,000 $14,000 $15,498 $1,498
14,000 14,000 15,498 1,498
50,685 50,685 18,240 32,445
50,685 50,685 18,240 32,445

(36,685) (36,685  (2742) 33,943

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

($36,685)  (836,685)  ($2742)  $33,.943

73
18

(2.651)
85,766
83,115



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DISTRICT ATTORNEY FORFEITURE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES

Interest

Miscellaneous
Totat Revenuas

EXPENDITURES
Current
Judicial
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Ovar (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USESY).
Operaling Transfers In
Operaling Transfers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable
Changes in Accrued Wages Payable
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund Balancas - Beginning
Fund Balancas - Ending

78

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Pasitive

Original Final Actual {Negative)

$500 $500 $559 $59
3,500 3,500 11,395 7.895
4,000 4,000 11,954 7,854
21,557 21,557 17,829 3,728
21,557 21,557 17,829 3,728

(17557)  (17.557)  (5.875) 11,682

(=

0 0 0 0

_ (817,557)  ($17,557) ($5.875) §11,682

(130)
25

(5.980)
83472
$77,492



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DISTRICT ATTORNEY HOT CHECK

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Charges for Sefvicas
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Curmrent
Judicial
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In
Operaling Transfers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation from cash basis (o modified accrual basis:

Changes in Officers Fees and Salas Tax Receivable
Changes in Accounts Payable
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

79

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$3,500 $3,500 $4,068 $568
3,500 3,500 4,068 568
15,368 15,368 9,714 5,654
15,368 15,368 9,714 5,654
(11,868) (11,868) (5,646) 6,222
0
0
0 0 0 0
($11,868)  (311,868) (5,646) $6,222

0
0

(5,646)

17,208

$11,560



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DISTRICT CLERK RECORDS MANAGEMENT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES

Charges for Servicas
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Administration
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

80

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts . Posltive
Original Final Actual (Negative) .
$3,450 $3,450 $4,486 $1,036
3,450 3,450 4,486 1,036
4,600 4,600 2,548 2,051
4,600 4,600 2,549 2,051
(1,150) {1,150) 1,937 3,087
0
Q
0 0 0 0
~(1,150) {1,150) 1,937 3,087
20
1,957
1,574

S



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
ELECTION ADMINISTRATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - 8UDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Administration
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operaling Transfers In
Operating Transfers Qut

Totat Other Financing Sources (Usas)

Nat Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable

Nat Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending
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Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$1,300 $1,300 $686 (3614)
1,300 1,300 686 (614)
1,400 1,400 535 865
1,400 1,400 535 865
(100) ~(100) 151 251
0
0
0 0 0 0
(100) _{100) 151 251
0
151
4
_ 9198



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
HEALTH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENOED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES

Intergovermental

Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and Walfare
Total Expenditures

Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In
Qperating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Nat Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Officers Fees and Sales Tax Receivable
Changes in Grants Receivabla

Changes in Prepaid Insurance

Changes in Accounts Payable

Changes in Accrued Wages Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounis Positive
Original Final Aciual (Negative)
30 $1,165 $2,124 $959
14,000 14,000 10,685 ~{3,335)
14,000 15,165 12,788 (2,376)
29,145 30,310 30,295 15
29,145 30,310 30,285 15
~ {15,145) (15,145) (17,506) ~ (2,361)
$0
0 0 (4044) (4,044)
0 0 (404  (a.049)
~ ($15,145) ($15,145) (21,550) ($6,405)
(270)
4,30
__ 28
(16,157)
15,157
$0
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
HISTORICAL COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES

Interest

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and Recreation
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers in
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balancaes

Reconcliiation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Prepaid Insurance
Changes in Accounts Payable
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

83

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Qriginal Final Actual {(Negative) -

$100 $100 $217 $117
500 500 11,855 11,355
600 600 12,072 11,472
14,400 14,400 1,082 13,318
14,400 14,400 1,082 13,318
{13,800) ~ {13,800) 10,290 24,790
1,400 1,400 1,400 0
Q
1,400 1,400 1,400 0

($12400)  ($12,400)  $12,390 $24,790

(110)
0

12,280
23,098
$35,378

—_—




JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

JUSTICE COURT TECHNOLOGY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amaunts Pasitive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovemmental $0
Charges for Services 8,950 8,950 9,856 706
Miscellaneous 0
Total Revenues 8,850 8,850 8,656 706
EXPENDITURES
Current
Judicial 17,100 17,100 13411 3,689
Total Expenditures 17,100 17,100 13,411 3,689
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (8.150) (8,150) {3,755) 4,385
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In 0
Operalting Transfers Out 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances ($8,150) ($8,150) ($3,755) $4,395
Recondiliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable 184
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis (3.571)
Fund Balances - Beginning 8,070
Fund Balancks - Ending $5,499
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

JUVENILE PROBATION DISCRETION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Onginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services $2,000 $2,000 3,82 $1,821
Total Revenues 2,000 2,000 3821 1,821
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety 9,501 9,501 6,200 3,301
Tolal Expenditures 8,501 9,501 6,200 3,301
Excass (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (7,501) (7,501) (2,378) 5,122
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).
Operating Transfers In ]
Operaling Transfers Out U]
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 -0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances (87,501) ($7,501) ($2,379) $5,122
Reconciliation from cash basis to modified acorval:
Changes in Officers Fees and Sales Tax Receivable 0
Changes in Acoounts Payable 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis (2,379)
Fund 8alances - Beginning 8,135
fund Balances - Ending $5,756
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
JUVENILE PROBATION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transters In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Recondiliation fram cash basis to modified accruat:
Changes in Officers Fees and Sales Tax Receivable
Changes in Prepaid Insurance

Changes in Accounts Payable

Changes In Accrued Wages Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Pasltive
Orlginal Final Actual {Negative)

$122,389 $122,388  $110,666 ($11,723)
200 200 297 97

122,589 122,589 110,963 {11,626)

122589 122,589 111443 11,148
122589 122589 111443 11,148
0 0 {480) (480)
0
0
0 0 0 0
$0 $0 (480) ($480)

(518)

(106)

(2,880)

79

(4,761)

17,705

$12,944



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Bugget -
Budgeted Amounts Pasitive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services 30 $0 $0 30
Total Revenues 0 0 0 0
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety 5,992 5,882 1,856 4,136
Total Expenditures 5,992 5,982 1,856 4,136
Excess (Oeficiency) of Revenues Qver (Under)
Expendiluras (5,992 (5,992) (1,856) 4,136
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In 0
Operating Transfers Out 0
Total Other Finandng Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances (5,992) (5,992) (1,856) 4,136
Reconclliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis (1,856)
Fund Balances - Beginning 5,992

Fund Balances - Ending $4,136



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
LAW LIBRARY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Currant
Legal
Tolal Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Raconciliation from cash basis to madified accrual:
Changes in Officers Fees and Sales Tax Receivable
Changes in Accounts Payable

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

88

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Aciual {Negaiive)
$7,800 $7,800 $8,015 $215
7,800 7,800 8,015 215
22,000 22,000 18,981 3,019
22,000 22,000 18,881 3,019
(14,200) {14,200) {10,968) 3,234
15,750 15,750 15,750 0
0
15,750 15,750 15,750 0
$1,550 $1,550 $4,784 $3,234
0

4077

1,888

$5,975



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

MAURITZ CAMP

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDEO SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
fFinal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positve
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest $50 $50 $77 $27
Miscellaneous 0
Total Revenues 50 50 77 27
EXPENDITURES
Cuirent
Public Safety 11,200 11,200 11,200
Total Expenditures 11,200 11,200 0 11,200
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (11,150) (11,150) 77 11,227
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESY):
Operating Transfers In 0
Operaling Transfers Out 0
Totat Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances (11,150 (11,150 77 11,227
Fund Balances - Beginning 11,226 11,226 11,228 0

Fund Balances - Ending $76 $76 $11,303 $11,227




JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

MEMORIAL LIBRARY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budgat -
Budgeted Amounts Positiva
Originat Final Aciual (Negative)
REVENUES B
Interest $300 $300 $549 $249
Miscellaneous 3,400 3,400 6,070 2,670
Total Revenues 3,700 3,700 6,619 2,919
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and Recreation 5,850 5,650 5,058 592
Total Expenditures 5,650 5,650 5,058 592
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,950) {1,950) 1,561 3,511
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).
Operaling Transfers In 0
Operating Transfers Out 0
Total Other Financing Sourcas (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances (1,950 {1,950) 1,561 3,511
Reconciliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Accounts Payable {417)
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis 1,144
Fund Balances - Beginning 5,554
Fund Balances - Ending $6,698



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SHERIFF FORFEITURE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - (CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Onginal Flnal Actvai {Negative)
REVENUES
Interest $80 $80 $207 3127
Miscellaneous 0 0 29,853 29,853
Total Revenues 80 80 30,060 29,980
EXPENDITURES
Cuirent
Public Safety 11,000 15,200 9,859 5,341
Total Expenditures 11,000 15,200 9,859 5,341
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (10,820 (15,120) 20,201 35,321
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In 0
Operaling Transfers Out 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances ($10,920)  ($15,120) 20,201 $35,324
Recondiliation from cash basis to modified accrual:
Changes in Acocounts Receivable (155)
Changes in Accounts Payable (161)
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Accrual Basis 19,885
Fund 8alances - Beginning 27,571
Fund Balances - Ending $47 456
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE Of EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

GRANTOR'S/
FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH PROGRAM
CFDA GRANTOR'S AWARD  EXPENDI-
SOURCE AND TITLE OF GRANT NUMBER NUMBER AMOUNT TURES
FEDERAL ASSISTANCE
[NON-STIMULUS PROGRAMS
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed Through
Texas SAVINS
Statewide Automated Victim Information Notification (SAVIN) Program (NM) 16.740
1224658 $5,843 $5,843
1337013 5,651
Total U.S. Department of Justice 5,843
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed Through
Texas Department of Public Salety
Homeland Security Grant Program (NM) 97.067
Fiscal Yaar 2010 SR4823902 213,605 64,365
64,365
Passed Through
Texas Department of Public Safety -
Division of Emergency Management
Hazard Mitigation Grant (M) 97.038
Fiscal Year 2012 OR1780-027 53,102 0
Fiscal Year 2012 - Community Safe Room DR1731-311 1,720,170 898,179
898,179
Passed Through
Texa Department of Public Safety
State Homeland Security Program (NM) 87.073
Fiscal Year 2010 SR48233-01 34,393 0
Fiscal Year 2010 SR48238-03 500,000 0
Fiscal Year 2010 SR48239.01 43,500 0
Fiscal Year 2010 SR48238-07 12,735 12,404
Fiscal Year 2011 SR48239-01 19,784 19,459
Fiscal Year 2012 SR48233-01 20916 0
Fiscal Year 2012 SR48233-02 27,868 0
31,863
Total U.S. Depariment of Homeland Security 694,407
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U.S. General Services Administration (GSA)
Passed Through
Texas Facililies Commission/Federal Surplus Program
Donation of Federal Surplus Personat Property (NM)
Fiscal Year 2012
Total U.S. General Sevices Administration (GSA)

U.S. Election Assistance Commission
Passed Through
Texas Secretary of State - Elections Division
Hetp America Vote A of 2002 (HAVA) (NM)
General HAVA Compliance
Polting Place Accessibility
Total U.S. Election Assistance Commission

U.S. Dapartment of the Interiar

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Regulations and Enforcemeant (BOEMRE)

Direct
Coastat tmpact Assistance Program (NM)
Benneh Park
Administrative

Totat U.S. Depactment of ihe Interior

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed Through
Texas Department of Transportation-Aviation Division
Aimort Improvement Program (NM)
Engineering
Routine Airport Maintenance Program

Total U.S. Depariment of Transportation
U.S. Department of Haalth and Human Services
Passed Through
Office of the Atlorney General
Child Support Enforcement-Title IV-D (NM)
Fiscal Year 2012
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

TOTAL NON-STIMULUS PROGRAMS

93

38.003

90.401

15428

20.106

83.563

15425 None 34,211
34,211

21,908 15,398

2,431 0

16,338

F12AF70258 323,000 257,803
F12AF01200 45,000 8,525

266,328

348-SBGP67-2010 106,924 12,626
50,000 11,948

24,574

None 4137

4,137

1,344,898



lSﬂMULUS PROGRAMS

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed Through
Texas Department of Rural Affairs
State-Administered Small Cities Program (NM)
Fiscal Year 2012
Totat U.S. Deparment of Housing and Urban Oevelopment

U.S. Department of Energy
Passed Through
Texas Comptrolller of Public Accounts
Energy Efficiency and Consesvation Block Grant Program (EECBG) (NM)
Fiscal Year 2012

Total U.S. Department of Energy

TOTAL STIMULUS PROGRAMS
Total Federal Assistance

CFDA=CATALOGUE OF FEDERAL DCOMESTIC ASSISTANCE NUMBER
M=MAJOR PROGRAM
NM=NONMAJOR PROGRAM

See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Federat Financiat Assistance

14.265
R-729300

81.128

443,502

57,578

212372

212,372

2,280

2,280

214.652

$1,559,550



JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS/STATES PROGRAM
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Federal Financial Assistance

Federal Grantor: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass Through Grantor: Texas Department of Rural Affairs (TDRA}
CFDA Number: 14.255

Project Number: R-729300

Contract Period: 10/17/2010 to 10/16/2012

FEDERAL LOCAL MATCH
PRIOR  CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT
BUDGET  YEAR YEAR  YEAR  YEAR  VARIANCE

REVENUE
Federa $443592  §231,220 $212,372 $0
TOTAL REVENUE: 443,592 231,220 212,372 0 0 l
EXPENSES
Federal
Sewer F acilities 443 592 231,220 212,372 0 0
TOTAL EXPENSES 443,592 231,220 212,372 0 0 0
Excess Ravenue over Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
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BEYER & CO.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Wayne R. Beyer, C.P.A.

442 WEST OAKLAWN
£.0. BOX 366 830/568-8781 FAX 830/568-6776
PLEASANTON, TEXAS 78064

111 NORTH ODEM
830/569-8781 FAX A30/568-6776
SINTON, TEXAS 78387

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Commissioners' Court
Jackson County, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jackson County, Texas, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise Jackson County, Texas 's basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employess, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defired
above,



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jackson County, Texas’ financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
confracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to the management of Jackson County, Texas in a separate
letter dated April 18, 2013.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Commissioners’ Court, others within
the entity, and Federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

Wap2\4,

BEYER & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
Pleasanton, Texas

April 18, 2013



BEYER & CO.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Wayne R. Beyer, C.P.A.

442 WEST OAKLAWN
£.0. 80X 366 830/569-8781 FAX 830/589-8776
PLEASANTON, TEXAS 78064

111 NORTH ODEM
830/589-8781 FAX 830/569-8778
SINTON, TEXAS 78387

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Commissioners’ Court
Jackson County, Texas

Compliance

We have audited Jackson County, Texas' compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Jackson County, Texas' major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2012. Jackson County,
Texas' major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, cantracts,
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Jackson County, Texas'
management. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on Jackson County, Texas' compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Jackson County, Texas’
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of Jackson County, Texas’ compliance with those requirements,

In our opinion, Jackson County, Texas, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2012.
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Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Jackson County, Texas, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Jackson County, Texas’ internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Jackson County, Texas' internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Commissioners' Court, others within
the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

BEYER & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
Pleasanton, Texas

April 18, 2013
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards presents the activity of all the
Jackson County, Texas’s Federal grants for the year ended September 30, 2012. This report is
intended for the information of the Jackson County, Texas, and Federal awarding agencies, and
is not intended to be used and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Non Cash Grants

Jackson County received non-cash grants of $33,334 for the year ended September 30, 2012 for
the TxDOT Aviation Grant.

JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Federal

There were no prior audit findings for Federal Awards.
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JACKSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1.

10.

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the
Jackson County, Texas.

There were no significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit. There was no material
weakness disclosed during the audit.

There were no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the
Jackson County, Texas, which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniforrm Grant Management Standards
(UGMS), disclosed during the audit.

There were no significant deficiencies over major Federal award programs disclosed
during the audit. There was no material weakness over major Federal award programs
disclosed during the audit.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major Federal award programs for the Jackson
County, Texas expresses an unqualified opinion on all major Federal programs.

There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section
510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.

The programs tested as major programs: Hazard Mitigation Grant - CFDA 97.039.
The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $300,000.
Jackson County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Material Weaknesses

a. There were no material weakness disclosed during the audit.

Findings relating to the Financial Statements

None

Findings and Questioned Cosis for Federal Awards

None
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Sheriff's Office

Finding:

1, We noted that the Commissary / Inmate Trust Fund bank account is not correctly
reconciled each month; therefore, we were unable to determine the source of
inmate monies being held.

Recommendation:
We recommend all bank accounts be reconciled monthly.
CORRECTIVE ACTION
The Commissary / Inmate Trust Fund will be reconciled every month.
Finding:
2. We were unable to obtain a true and correct year-end Resident Balance Report;
therefore, we were unable to determine actual amounts owed to inmates.
Recommendation:
We recommend that correct inmate balances be entered into the computer
software system routinely; and that the Resident Balance Report remain current;
and be reconciled to the bank statement(s).
CORRECTIVE ACTION

All recommendations will be applied.
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BEYER & Co.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Wayne R. Beyer, C.P.A.

P.0. Box 366 / 442 West Oaklawn
Pleasanton, Texas 78064
Phone: (830) 569-8781 ~ Fax: (830) 569-6776

111 North Odem
Sinton, Texas 78387
Phone: (830) 569-8781 ~ Fax: (830) 569-6776

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court

Jackson County

Edna, Texas

As a result of our observations concerning the accounting and financial aspects of the records of Jackson
County, Texas, during our audit for the year ended September 30, 2012, we submit the following
recommendations for your consideration:

Sheriff’s Office
Finding:

s We roted that the Commissary / Inmate Trust Fund bank account is not correctly
reconciled each month; therefore, we were unable to determine the source of
inmate monies being held.

Recommendation:
We recommend all bank accounts be reconciled monthly.
Finding:

2 We were unable to obtain a true and correct year-end Resident Balance Report;

therefore, we were unable to determine actual amounts owed to inmates.
Recommendation:

We recommend that correct inmate balances be entered into the computer
software system routinely; and that the Resident Balance Report remain current;
and be reconciled to the bank statement(s).

These comments and recommendations are made in a constructive spirit and in the best interest of the
Jackson County, Texas. We will be glad to review and discuss them in more detail with the County
personnel at your request.

Sincerely, (j
(\

BEYER & CO. :
Certified Public Accountants
April 18,2013



County of Jackson
Michelle Darilek, CPA

Phone:  361.782.2072

411 h .
L] North Wells Room 201 Jackson County Auditor Fax: 3617820856
o E-mail:  m.darilek@co.jackson.tx.us
May 28, 2013

Honorable Stephen Williams
District Judge

135" Judicial District

115 N Bridge

Victoria, Texas 77901

Honorable Judge Williams:

Enclosed ts a copy of Jackson County’s audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year
ended September 30, 2012 as well as a management letter dated April 18, 2013. There are several findings
listed in the report all pertaining to the Commissary/Inmate Trust Fund. The bank account has not been
reconciled since July 2010 when the new Keefe kiosk system (“system”) for tracking inmate transactions
was installed and many of the issues stem from the omission of this vital procedure.

The Auditor’s Office concurs with all the management letter’s reconunendations and will again discuss the
importance of recordkeeping, reconciling and reporting with the Jail Administration and the Sheriff’s
Office. The Auditor’s Office has contacted the Jail Administrator numerous times concerning the non-
reconciliation of the Commissary/Inmate Trust Fund bank account. The Auditor’s Office is now receiving
monthly reports, but the reports do not balance. The Auditor’s Office has diligently reconstructed the
outstanding check list, which is extensive, since outstanding checks were not input in the current system
and/or were input incorrectly. The Auditor’s Office spent numerous hours tracing items from the system to
the bank statement but to date has not resolved all the issues.

After discussions with Keefe technicians, the Sheriff’s Department and the outside auditors, the Auditor’s
Office recommends that a new bank account be opened as of October 1, 2013 with appropriate inmate
balances and other liability balances, leaving the previous transactions in the old bank account. Opening a
new account will allow the inmate trust/commissary account to be reconciled on a monthly basis from that
point forward. The amounts remaining in the old bank account will continue to be researched until all
issues are resolved. We also strongly suggested that Keefe be contacted and a representative be sent to
retrain the appropriate jail personnel and to train an administrative employee of the Sheriff’s Department
and Auditor staff. The Sheriff Department concurs and has already contacted Keefe to schedule a training
day.

The Auditor, Sheriff and Jail Administration plan to continue to work together to resolve the numerous
issues of the Commissary/Inmate Trust Fund. If you have any questions or need additional information,

please do not hesitate to contact me at the number or address above.

Sincerely

/%M/W

Michelle Darilek, CPA
Jackson County Auditor

Enclosures
Cc: County Judge

Commissioners
Audit File
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